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Signed Statement of Findings by Sounds Like Music
February 19, 2004

Re: Offensive Odor - 6483 E. El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley

et g e e i it

On Thursday, February 19, 2004, Sounds Like Music, 2 company retained by Mark and
Sherry Goldberg to move audio and video equipment from 6483 E. El Maro Circle, to
their temporary residence at 8317 N. Ridgeview Dr., notified the Goldbergs that there
was a significant malodor discovered in the course of their work.

The exact words the technicig;ns;themselvés used to describe the odor were “smelled like
old pee”., ' o

As Ken Artz, Mark Walton, and Salvador Perez-Sandi, Sounds Like Music technicians,
began their efforts to remove the electronic components and cabling from the
entertainment center, an offensive odor escaped from the cables that were attached to the
electronic equipment being stored in the media cabinet. ‘

This offensive odor was powerful encugh that all new cabling was required to install the
electronic components at Ridgeview Drive. The odorous cabling was left at the site.

Ken Artz, Mark Walton and Salvador Perez-Sandi all have signed below as testament t0
their discovery of the offensive odors found to have permested the cabling of the
electronic components in the Goldberg’s home.

A

J-uH—oH
Date
_ U, =/4-0Y
Salvadof Perez-Sandi Date
Goldberg 4460



RECORDED STATEMENT OF KEN ARZT

Policy No:: 1216-34-69/01

This is Randy McMahon representing Pacific Indemnity, and the date is 7/26/04. And
the time is 7:30 p.m. 'm visiting with Ken Arzt. Artz?

A
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That’s fine.

That's A-R-Z-T. Uh, at his home, 4419 West Sweetwater, all one word,
Glendale. What’s the zip Ken?

85304.

85304. And we’ll be ialking about Policy Number 1216-34-69/01, date of loss
6/28/01, insured Mr. and Mrs. Goldberg. And Ken, have you taken any drugs or
alcohol in the last 12 hours that would affect your ability to recall or relate facts?
No. (PHONE RINGS)

Okay. Do you have to get that phone?

I can turn it off.

Okay. I tumed off the tape for about 20 seconds. So, to turn off the telephone.
Okay.

Yeah.

We're back on again here. Uh, do I have your permission to record our
conversation? :

Sure.

Okay. And do you have a middle initial or is it Kenneth?
It’s A. Yeah.

And it’s Kenneth A.?

Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).

CHUBB 00027
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy Ne.: 1216-34-69/01
Page #2

Q.  Okay. Your birth date?
Uh, August 11%, °54.
Happy birthday almost.
Yeah.

Okay. And, ub, I've got your current address. And your telephone number?
Uh, (602) 570-4719.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A

Q. That’s home number here?

A. No, that’s my cell.

Q.  Cell

A.  Yeah. I'm never home.
Q.  Home numbers are kind of a dying breed.
A.  Yeah,itis.

Q.

Okay. Anyway, ub, I've got the statement, the signed statement of findings by
Soumnds....

&

Like Music.

=

Okay. That's dated February 19", 2004. At the top. And then, ub, there are 1, 2,
3, 4, 5 paragraphs. And at the boitom, uh, spaces where there are signatures
above the names Ken Arzt, Mark Walton, and Salvador Perez-Sandi.

Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).

All dated 3/4/04. Uh, is that your signature on, on it?

Yes, itis.

Okay. And have you seen this statement before?

Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE). Yeah.

I B A ¢

Okay.

——
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01
Page #3

A.
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Yes, I have.

Okay. And is 3/4/04 the time that you signed that or dated and signed it?
That’s the date I signed it, yeah.

Okay. And who asked you to do this?

Uh, Mark Goldberg did.

Okay. And what did he ask?

Uh, they, they put together this sheet and asked us to sign it, and I believe the
words on there were actually from Mark. And, uh, but, ub, it’s true.

Okay. Mark Walton is who we’re talking about?
Yes.
Okay.

Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE). ~Yeah. Yeah, we were there. I, I suppose it was
February 19%, and, uh, we were to move one of the particular systems that we had.-
there over to his new home. We pulled it out and, ub, actually I, | said, geez, this
is preity bad. Whers, where the wires came down from up in the ceiling, there
was 2 big, it was the main feed for the whole antenna system and the satellite he
had, probably 9 or 10 satellite receivers in the home. And, uh, there was a plasima
TV there, and a system for that particular room. And proceeded to pull it out, and
all the wires behind there, ub, they smelled pretty bad. So, you know, I, one of us.
I don’t know if it was me. We went and got Mark and said, hey, I don’t think
we’re gonna pull these wires out and wash them down. I mean, you can’t...it’s a
pretty high-end system. And, uh, very specialty item devices, you don’t just take
these wires and dip them in detergent and clean them off. And we didn’t want to
touch them, actually. So I, uh, we unplugged them and left them there. And that
was that. ’ '

Okay. A couple more questions about the declaration document.
Yeah. That’s fine.

Then we’ll follow up with questions on what you did.

That’s fine.

Uh, who typed it? Do you know?

P
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01

Page #4

A. Uh, probably Mark or one of his secretaries. I don’t kmow.

Q.  Okay. And did anybody talk to you about it before you saw it?

A. Oh, yeah.

Q. About what was going to be in it, I mean?

A.  Yesh

Q.  How did that work out? Who did it?

A Ub, actually Mark had asked me at that time if I wanted to sign something, you.

>

> 0 P R P R

know, sayifig that it, it really was that way. And I said sure. You know. Just do
your lawyer thing and write it up and I'll, 'li sign it as long as it’s real.

Vezh. And who presented it to you physically?
Uh, I think, T believe Mark faxed this to me at Sounds Like Music.

And so, uh, was it read to you over the phone or anything? Or is the first time
you saw it is when it was faxed to you?

Geez, I don’t remember. 1, he probably talked to me about it and then faxed it to
me. But I don’t know if he read the whole thing in full.

Okay.

I don’t remember.

Anyway, at some point it was faxed to you at Sounds Like Music?
Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).

Vou took a look at it. What did, did you read it?

I believe it was faxed to me on the 4" because we signed it that day and faxed it
right back to him.

Okay.
Yeah.

And did you read it before you signed it?
cHusa 60030
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01

Page #5

A Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE). Oh, yeah. Sure.

Q.  Okay. And, uh, you had said that most of these words on here appear to be Marik
Walton’s?

A. Well, the, I believe Mark said something like, I worked on a farm for a long time
and 1 lmow what piss smells like. So....

Q. Okay.

A, Uh, yeah.

Q.  So that, that comment in there, smelis like old pee, is probably a, ub, at least 2
paraphrase of what he said?

A. Yeah.

Q. Okay. So anyway, it was faxed to you. You signed it and then faxed it back?

A.  Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).

Q Okay. Did you have i_o malke any changes in it at al]l?

A, No. No. It’s plr_cﬁy smrmghﬁ'orward.

Q. Ckay. From 0 to 100 percent, how accurate is that declaration from what you saw
and heard? :

A Other than the exact words of Mark, which you’ll probably see him soon. Idon’t
know. But, uh, you know. What, 99, 100. Sure. Yeah. Ub-huh
(AFFIRMATIVE). Yezh. We wouldn’t put this cable in anybody’s house after
that.

Q. Tltwasbad?

A. Yezh. Yeah.

Q. How many times have you been at, to that house?

A. Oh, God. Uh, the whole remodel, probably took, and I don’t know if it’s rue or”
not, but it probably took a year and a half. It was a very large project. Actually, I
was the salesman on the project.

Q. This is the initial remodel before all the odor thing came about?

e
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 121 6-34-69/01

Page #6

A Um-hmm (AFFIRMATIVE).

Q. Okay.

A. Yeah. So I, I've been there, gosh, I don’t know. Inthe beginming, several times a

?;:

Z o R

month for a year. Uh, and then after this bappened, I've probably been there 10
times. I know Sal and Mark have probably been there 50 times. L, I don’t know
exacily. But....

Sure.

Mark was a, a very good customer and, you know, it’s a huge system. Lots of
details. Uh, lots of rooms. All custom. And, uh, so the detail in the system is
extreme. So you have to be there a lot. So....

So that time period during the remodel was what? Does that go back to like
2002?

I don’t know. 2000. This may not be right. I mean, I’d have to go look at my
stuff.

Sure.
Just a ball park?

Oh, 2001 to 2003 probably. Yeah. The time they were settled in. There were
lots of changes and lots..many, many change orders and, and, uvh, you know,
highly detailed systems. So it was 100 percent programmed to his liking. And,

So on that job, uh, Mark and Salvador and, and you were all involved in the....

Yeah. Me as, Salvador and, and Mark Goldberg probably, uh, more contact than,
than me and Mark. Mine was more, after I sold it to him, more over the phone.

Yeah.

And directing Sal. Sal was the hands on guy. It’s a pretty high-end system too,
s0 it’s not, you know, a CD player. You plugitin. And you go. ‘

Yeah.

CHUBB 00032



Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01
Page #7

A.
Q.
A.
Q.

A
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It’s....

Okay. So when you were there at the house, ub, what, what different rooms....
This time?

Well, fet’s go back to the remodel During that time period, was there any odor
issue, during the remodel period?

Uh, during the remodel, when we were putting it all in, the first time, no. I dom’t
think..no. No. It was only after they had moved in, and, uh, we still weren’t
done, because there were many, many. changes. So I'd say there were...and 1
‘don’t know if this is, if this..I'm throwing out six months here.

Yeah.

But, ub, I think, gosh..I'd have to go back to my computer and look it up. But,
ub, dialing a system in like this is like automating Disneyland. Okay. It’s
basically the same thing. We have a huge Crestron antomation systemm, and, uh,
very detailed to their likings. The touch screens were all, and there were issues
about programming and things that probably weat on for months. Uh, to get it to
their liking. And then kitile changes here and there. And, uvh, I think it was
probably six months after they moved in that they, ub, called me one day and said,
hey, ihere’s some speakers in one end of the house that, that need replacing. And
I'm like, replacing? They're brand new. You kmow. They've been in there a
year. What’s wrong? And they said well, there’s an odor coming, and we
discovered that there was something in the attic. And, uh, at that point, ub, you
know, I gave them a, a small bid for, ub, replacing, I don’t kmow, two or three
rooms worth of speakers, built-in antenna-like speakers. And, uh, and then I
guess he investigated. Had somebody investigate up in the attic. And that’s when

they found all this stuff. So....

Okay. So we're, we're somewhere around February?

No, we’re before that. We're probably, uh, this happened after they decided to
move out of the house.

This being the statement that you were there?
The statement we were there.
Okay.

Right. This, this statement happened, I believe, after...well, I know it’s after they
decided to get out of there because it was bothering them too much.

CHUBB 00033




Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01
Page #8

Q. Yesh

A. I mean, they werc- just..kept on co{rexing it, and as it, as time passed, it came
‘down through the walls, and they could smell it more, and, uh, I witnessed that
too. I mean, it was, it was there.

Q. So let me get the time frame right. So roughly 2001 to 2003 is the remodel; the
initial instaliation. You and the other two guys were back and forth, especially the

other guys? .

Yeah. This is 2 good year and a haif to two year project for us.

Before they ever moved in?

Uh, it was probably a year before they moved in. And....
Okay.

o P o P

...they had so many change orders and things. There were other people in their
house doing things while they were there. Living there, for at least six months, I
" would, you know, and this is my memory. Just....

)

Q. Sure.
A. You know. I've been out of there for awhile, so....

Q.  So the odor issue didn’t come up until they had moved into the house, and you
didn’t hear about it for maybe six months after they moved in?

A, Youknow, I don’t know if that’s true, but I could go to my computer and check it
out. But I think, it seems that...I don’t know. Maybe late summer or fall. Middle
fall. Ireally don’t know. Of2003. Is when they discovered it. Probably. I think
they moved pretty quickly after, after that, to try to figure out what it was. And
then they had several companies come in and check it out. And, and, uh,....

Q.  Okay. So was there 2 time period after the job was pretty much done, uh, a time
like where you weren't there, and then they called you back out to, to replace the
speakers?

A. Well, we had been there probably, I mean, all we had left were programming
issues. There's a computer system that runs their whole house that we sold them.

Q.  Uh-huh (AFF IRMATIVE).

——
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01

?@P@?@P@?’@?’@?’@?’@

Page #9
A And, uh, and it’s, again, highly detailed in every little, tiny little button push took
hours of time to program and codes and things. So it took a long time.
Q.  What parts of the house were you in?
A Was I? I’ve been all over that house. I've been in the entire, every room in the
house.
Pretty much the same thing for, uh, Salvador and Mark?
Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE). Sal’s been in every closet m that house.
QOkay.
Yeah.
Were there other people, uh, involved in the...
Oh, yeah.
m the remodel?
You mean from, from....
While you were there?
From Sounds Like Music?
No. I'm sorry. From other, uh, vendors, coniractors?
Oh, yeah.
During the same time period you were there?
Many. Yes.
Was there a general contractor in there?
Yeah. What was his name? Uh, Lou Marsten was the ge;neral. We didn’t work
for him though.
Q. Marsten?
A. Yeah. Idon’t know how you spell it. M-A-R-S-T-E-N probably.

P
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01
Page #10

Okay.

No we, we contracted directly with Mark because we had done business with him
prior to him buying this home.

Okay.

Soe....

Okay. So you had known, uh, Mark Goldberg before he even bought the place?
Well, the company had, yeah.

Okay.

Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE). Yeah.

How long have you known him?

Uh, since initial contact for this jolb, I don’t know. 2001.

Okay.

Again, you know. I write it all. Put it in the computer and....

I understand that.

I’d have to consult that for the time, but it sounds about right.

So you contracted, or at least Sounds Like Music did directly with the Goldbergs?
Ub-huh (AFFIRMATIVE). Yeah. Yep. Yes.

Okay. Uh, how did you first become aware and when of any odor issues in the
house? _

Well, I don’t know the exact date, but it had to be late 2003, and I'm talking from
August on. L I don’t really know. But it’s when he called me and said, uh, we
have some equipment that’s damaged.

Being, he being?

Mark Goldberg.

Mark Goldberg?

CHUBB 00036
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01
Page #11

A

o Fr R
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Right. Some equipment that’s damaged. And it was, uh, in-ceiling speakers that
needed replacing, and, in, uh, several of the rooms. And, uh, Isaid, what, what’s
going on? And that’s what, that’s what I told you before.

Yeah. Yeah.

And he said that there was, uh, there’s an odor coming from them, and somebody
pissed in the attic. Evidently. :

Did he tell you who he thought it was at that point?
No. They don’t know. There must have been, uh, who knows. I mean, there
were electricians. There were, there were, uh, cverything in that house is

automated. We did the audio and the video. And that’s it.

Yeah.

We didn’t do any lighting or anything else. I mean, they have extensive lighting
systems, and I know that the contractor probably subbed out lots of those jobs. So
who knows?

Was there any, was there anybody that had hard feelings towards Mark or Mrs.
Goldberg during the, the remodel that your aware of?

From our company?
From any, from anybody. Anything that you've heard?
1 have no, I have no clue.

Yeah.

I mean, Goldberg is, ub, is wealthy, and, and he’s a great customer of mine. He's
been nothing but fine.

Yeah.
And so, you know. Hard feelings from us? No way.
Okay.

It’s business and it’s great.

——

CHUBB 00037
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzi
Policy No.: 1216-34-69/01
Page #12

Q.

A.
Q
A
Q
A

=

e

IR B S SR

You didn’t hear anything from any of the other workers there that would make
you thini, hey, these people are upset with him or anything?

No. I didn’t really talk to any of the other workers.
Yeah.
You might wanna talk to Sal. [ don’t, I don’t know.

Ckay.

- Yeah. No. Imean, you know, you, you give them a bid. He agrees o it. He pays

forit. You get work. It’s business.
Yeah. So, I'm sorry, go ahead.
Yeah. Who could be mad at that?

I know. Not me. Uh, so you had kind of a heads up, some...Mark told you that

there were some odor issues in the house before you went back to deal with the
wires?

Oh, yeah. Iknew that. Yesh. We knew ahead what was going on at that point.
But you hadn’t smelled it yet? You just....

T hadn’t been over there. Maybe Sal or Mark had. But, but I hadn’t.

Ckay.

You know.

So at some point after he invited you to come over-and wamed you about the, the
urine odor, uh, you smelled it for yourself. Is that correct?

Well, what, what had happened was, we had replaced those speakers. And, or I
had, uh, yeah, we did, I believe we did replace the speakers. We did replace the
speakers. And I don’t think, and I don’t know for sure, but I don’t think at that
point he had decided to move out of the house. And go to another place. You
know. And purchase another home. So, uh, only after he purchased the other
home, and we, you know, this is a custom system, and basically we had to take it
out and put it in his new house. Well, that’s difficult because it was tailored to
this exact house. So we had to pull it. And there’s a central system that nuns the
whole house. And then there were systems in individual rooms that they
operated. Plasma TV’s and the whole works. So it was, 1 believe it was the, ub, 1

-
CHUBB 00038
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
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Page #13
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don’t kmow what they call it. The family room or the living room. The family
room off of the kitchen is what this paper, this statement is about. '

The family, family room off of the kitchen?

Off of the kitchen. Right. Adjacent to the billiard room. Ard, uh, that was a
system that we, we’d gone over to remove, to move over 0 his new home. And
whea we pulled it out, ub, it happened to be the place in the home where the main
termination was, where all the wires went up into the attic, and the main

texmination for all the satellite, all the video for the home was behind this plasma

TV. So,youknow,itwasin,itwasinacomemfamom,andhehindﬂnatwasm .

unfinished area that kind of went up to the ceiling where there was a, ub, I don’t
know what you call it. A chase, a soffet. And where, you kmow, a huge trunk of
wires came down. Probably, you know, a foot in diameter. - Lot of wires. And,
uh, I got in there and, you know, I was, Mark, come here and check this out.
This, this stuff is, this stuff stinks.

Which Marlk are you talking about?

Mark, uh, my Mark.

Walton?

Mark Walton, Mark Walton was the, ub, vh, installation manager, and Salvador
was the, uh, the lead ims@lle&* for the company at that point. -

Olkay.

So, uh, you know. We looked at sach other and said..be says, what do you
wanna do with this stuff? And I said, "m not touching it. Let’s just unplug it and
go get Mark and see what he wants to do with it. You know. '

So there....

I mean, it’s expensive cable. Imean it, I don’t know exactly, but probably several
thousand dollars worth of wire. He bought the best gear on the planet. You
know. Hook it up with, you know, buy a Lamborghini and put K-Mart tires on it.

Yeah. Yeah.
That’s what we were working with.

So you unplugged it. You didn’t pull the wires out because they were t0o0....

They smelled.

CHUBB 00038
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
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A

And I said these wires need replacing. I, I'm not...T don’t wanna put these in your
house if they’re contaminated.

So what did Mr. Goldberg say?

He said, well, what do you think? You know. He smelled them personally and he
says, oh, yeah. And I said, definitely, they smell. So he said leave them.

Did, ub, did you ever smell other cdors in the house? Such as, and I’ll list a few.
Tell me if you smelled anything there.

Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).
Paini? Now I'm talking about, you know, later in the game. Not back in the very

beginning remodel, but after he called you to, to put the speakers or o, uh, replace
the speakers.

Well, 1 wasn’t there to replace the speakers. I well, I've been to the house several
times, and I don’t think I smelled paint, 50, no.

Okay. Or stain?

- No.

How about wood odors, either from new wood or anything like that?

1 don’t thinlk so

Any carpet? New carpet odors?

There’s, uh, I doubt if there’s any carpet in the whole house.
Okay. How about any sewage?

No.

Or any sewer gas?

No.

Natural gas?

No..

Okay. Any other unusual odors other than what you called the urine odors?

CHUBB 00041
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Recorded Statement Of Ken Arzt
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Page #16

A.  1didn’t smell anything, no.

Q. Okay. And so you personally, how many different places did you smell that odor
that smells Tike urine? '

A.  Right here.

Q. Okay.

Right in that, that room off of the kitchen. - Family. [ think he calls it the family
OO

Q. So that’s the only day and the only place that you personally smelled it?

A, That I have. ‘

Q. Okay.

A. Right. Right.

Q. Uk m hallways, other rooms, bathrooms, any place that you were in, did you
smell it, anything similar?

A. Uh, I, I, you know, they had a lot of the house cordoned off, and they were trying
to get rid of the smell. And I, I know I°d been out there several times. Uh, my
visits weren’t technical, as technical in nature, other than, hey, other than, uh, you
know, deciding where to put what and directing the install, install department.

Q. So your visits were fairly brief inside the house?

A. My visits were more brief, or they were, you know, in his home theater, sitting
down, trying to figure out what he wanted to do next.

Q. So you didn’t smell it any place else?

A You know, I, I had smelled it, ub, I believe, down in his danghter’s room. Ididn’t

spend much time, but I walked through and, and, T can’t tell you when it was. It
was prior to that.

Okay.

But it wasn’t a, you know, come sniff over here and see if you can tell me
anything. It was, you know, this is the room that’s contaminated, and, and, uh,
you know. A musty type of smell. So...

CHUBB 00042
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Q. Describe as, in as much detail as you can...it’s not an easy task here, what, what
the cdor was that was so strong.

A. Uh, let’s just say that, uh, gosh. How about, uh, an old bam where lots of, ub, I
don’t kmow. Gosh. It smelled like piss. Okay? It’s not like you go and you do
that and, and compare.

Q. And would you say, oh, on a scale of 0 to 100 percem, how sure you are that it
was a urine smell that you smelled as opposed to anything else?

A. It’s not a smell you smell every day, so, uh, I'd have to be above 90 percent sure '
that it was that. That it was urine. Yeah.

Q.  And the other guys..who eise were you aware of, when you were there also,
smelled the cdor? '

A, Oh,well, just Mark and Sal. Mark Walton and Sal.

Q.  And was there some wﬁvéﬁaﬁoﬁ_n among the tbrge;_of you about the odor?

A.  Oh,yeah

Q.  Okay. And they felt it was?

A Well, it was, you Know, basically they don’t wanna touch this stuff, because who
kuiows where it’s from, you kmow. ' - '

Q. So the first time you smell it, it wasn’t pointed out fo you. You discovered it
independently as....

A. L Ithink I was the one that said, Jesus, something really stinks back bere. IUs
here too. We were gonna take the wires with us.

Q. Were the Goldbergs there that day when you smelled the....

A. I don’t know if Sherry was. I'm sure she was. But Mark was there, yes.

Q. Okay.

A. Yeah. Mark Goldberg was there. Yeah.

Q. Did, once you discussed that with, with Mark that day, did, did he go over in any

more detail what the cause of this problem was?

CHUBB 00043
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A

Q.
A
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A
Q.

We all kmew. We all knew what the problem was.

Just from what he had told you earlier about the....

Well, the guys had been out there. It’s, it’s not an average thing.

Yeah.

It’s, it’s extreme. So....

Uh, any one of the three of you have any idea who was responsible for doing it?
No. We just assumed it was some sub. We don’t know.

Ckay.

I mean, how many people were in that attic? I don’t know.

Wer theze any other unusual odors in the house, otter than thl?

1 don’t thmk so, no. No, mcre wa_.sn’&.

QOkay.

It’s a pretty clean place.

Just in your personal experiencs, ul...
Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).

...have you ever smelled mold?
Ub-huh (AFFMATNE).

Mildew?

Sure.

Sewer gas?

Yeah.

Uh, and some people have described...in trying to describe the edor, some people
say there are outhouse odors, where it’s kind of a combination of urine and fecal
odor.

CHUBB 00044
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A.  Uh-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).
Q.  Other people say there’s, you know, urine only, fike a baby’s diaper. Uh, and

=

>0 PO PO TR P

then there’s like general sewage cdors and stuff like this. Where does this order,
odor, I'm sorry, fit in, in the fist of, of types?

I¢'s definitely not the baby diaper odor. Ikmnew that one a long time ago. Uk, it’s
not the musty tent edor. Okay? Uh, it seems like it was, ©h, you imow. Gosh.
It’s not an outhouse smell. I, it smelled like dried outhouse. Okay? That’s the
best I can putit. L... '

More specific towards uring than....

I, yes. More specific towards urine, definitely. Yeah. Yeah.

Do you have any pmblenis, or have you had any .pmﬁle_ms with your sense of
smell or taste?

‘Not that 1 know of.

Okay. Nobody’s told you have no taste?

Al least not, uh, not that way.

Do you smoke?

I do.

How many packs a dajl approximately?

Not even. You know. Five or six cigarettes. And back then, I didn’t.
Okay.

So..I think I had quit for probably several years, and picked it up again,
so...recently.

Uh-buh (AFFIRMATIVE). Do you, uh, are you familiar enough with some of
these other odors I've talked about to know that this was different? In other
words, was this odor that you smelled not mold?

No, it wasn’t mold.

It, was it sewer gas?

CHUBB 00045
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Tt wasn’t sewer gas. No. No.
And how do you define sewer gas? And, how would it differ from that?

Sewer gas is, ub, is not on the urine side. It’s more on the fecal side. How"s that?

Okay.

A,
Q.
A.
Q.
A It, it, you know, it was more like dried urine smell.
Q.  Okay.

A.  Itwas pretty dusty and, you know, back there. So....
Q.

Fromt O to 100 peccent, how sure are you that the odor came from inside the house
as opposed to outside?

A.  Oh;it’s definitely inside the house. Yeah,

Ckay.

1 have worked for a few companies in my years. I’ve done this for 30 years. And
T have actually known guys that didn’t wanna come out of the attic when they’re
up there wiring, and would just urinate in the attic, “cause they won’t smell it. So I
know this happens.

>

Yeah. Yeah.
And that’s a fact. Not that I would do that.

Yeah.

R = B S

Uh, I’ve heard about it. I’ve heard guys talk about it. S when they came up from
Goldberg’s, I couldn’t believe it. But, uh, that somebody will actually do it.

Q. You didn’t, in this job, you didn’t hear of it happening or see it happen or know of
it...

>

No.
...specifically?

No. The first time I heard about it was when Mark Goldberg called me and said,
hey, we got a problem. We got some contaminated speakers. Ineed a, Ineeda

——

CHUBB 00046
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quote for, I don’t know how many pairs. 2, 3, 4. 1 could look it up on my

computer, but I can’t tell you off the top of my head. It was almost a year ago
Now.

So anyway, when you pointed out to Mark Goldberg, he said just to leave them
there?

Yeah He actually smelled it himself. Gave me the face and said, oh, phew, you
know. We all smelled it.

But he had already smelled cdors similar to that in the house?
P’m assuming.

Okay.

He wouldn’t be doing this if he didn’t.

Did any of the, uh, the odor that day or any other day have any effect on you
physically or psychologically?

No. liwas:- jus(t, you how, it’s pn'eﬂty sick. But psycholqgiéaﬂy, no. It happcmed.
You wege sick?

No.

Clkay.

It’s a sick thing.

1t’s, I gotcha.

Okay.

Did, uh, did the odor interfere with any of your activities there at the house?
Well, we did not remove those wires. We decided to not touch them at that point.

Okay. You know of anybedy else in the house, your guys or anybody else that
was physically affected?

By the cdor?

CHUBB 00047
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A 1 believe his family may have. But it’s hearsay and I don’t know for sure. 1
mean, why would they move if it didn’t affect them?

Q.  Sure. How many times after that day did you go back to the house?

A, That house? I think only once. Yeah. We were preity much done. We had sent
a crew of several guys over fo remove gear. And they had a company, uh, you
know, wiping down all the gear and vacuuming it and blowing it out. And, uh, I
shink that...and I can’t, I can’t tell you what month or day it was. It was prior {0
this because they wege still living there and they wanted one system up that they
could watch TV on. And that was the last one, I think, we removed. So, ub.... '

Q. Okay. Almost done here. Uh, so I'm sure you’ve answered this, but just ask one
more time.

A.  Uh-hvh (AFFIRMATIVE).

Q. Yot;r'cvalliaﬁéﬁ‘t_ﬁaf what you were smelling as urine, was that based on input
you received before you smelled it? Was it the power of suggestion, or, or was it
‘-) your independent evaluation of it that it was.... '

>

Well, Pl tell you what. Having, having camped as a kid for scygfa}i years, and
you just know what that smells like,

Olkay.
You know, 1 didn’t go over there to smell the staff. Didn't expect to smell any.

Yeah.

= S

Removed it. You know. Went behind the system. Pulled it out and there it was,
50....

i

Have you ever seen anybody urinate in or near the house?
No, I haven't.

Q. Uh, were you inside any of the restrooms at the house to know whether or not
there was either an odor or if its toilets worked propetly? ‘

A. I doubt I've ever used any of the restrooms. You know. I can’t remember an
incidence.
Q. Okay. _
CHUBB 00048
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A.  Idon’t know. A couple of years ago maybe. I don’t know. Before all that.

Q.  You don’t recall any odors in the, unusual odors in the bathroom?

A. There were, you know, there were no odors. I mean, the only odors that were in
the house when we were pre-wiring it were, we were cutting wood and we’re
cutting up drywall. The place was a mess because of that, but you know. ’

Q. Okay.

Al What does construction smell like? Dust.

Q.  Yeah.

A 1 didn’t smell that then, so....

Q. Did you ever see any pets or any other animals in or near the house?

A See any? I think they have a cat. 1know they had a cat in their old house before
they moved here. I don’t know that I'd ever seen the cat in that house. But I'm
sure they have it, so....

Q. I notice you have a cat because he was in the middle of our table here just a
minute ago.

A Yeah.

Q. And does the odor smell like any, anything that a cat would produce?

Uh, mine don’t, uh, mine don’t smell. So no, it doesn’t smell like that. It was, it
was pretty stinky.

Q.  Okay. Did you use or, or your crew use any odor producing products when you
were in the bouse?

A At that date?

Q. Yes.

A Or, not on that date, no.

Q. Onwhat..

CHUBB 00049
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When we went there to unhook things. I mean, uh, what would we have used?
Ub, it wasn’t a new construction, so we didn’t have to foam any of the holes for
fire. Uh, that stuff smells until it dries. But you know, that’s...oh, Toluene,
whatever they call it. It’s....

But you didn’t use that?

No. We didn’t need to. Uh, it was a retro-fit. So there was no new construction. I
can’t imagine what they would use.

No solvents for cleaning or other chemicals or anything?

No: The stuff that we would clean would be finish work, and it’s, you know,
damp diapers. With just old water.

Okay.
‘Cause it’s real high-end gear. And plasma TV surfaces and things like that. So....
Okay.

Uh, I can’t...I don’t even think the use any glue or anything. So no, it wasn’t a
chemical smell.

Okay.
Yeah.

Anything else you can think of that, uh, would be important to us in evaluating
this?

Uh, I can’t think of anything. I mean, it’s pretty straightforward. You know. I
didn’t go out there expecting to get in the middle of this thing. So....

Yeah.

Ub, you know, I went over there just to make them happy "Move his stuff over to
his house and get it rolling again.

Okay.
So, uh, that’s our job.

Okay. Okay. Let’s finish this off then. Uh,....

CHUBB 00050
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A.  Ub-huh (AFFIRMATIVE).

Q.  Idid have your permission to record the conversation? Is that right?
A.  Ub-hub (AFFIRMATIVE). Yes, itis.

Q.  Anddo you, did you understand all the questions I asked?

A, Yes, 1did.

Q.  Have all your answers been truthful to the best of your knowledge?
A Yes, they have.

Q.  And is there anything else you’d like to add?

A.  Uh,no. Ithink, you know, it’s pretty strai Thtforward.

Q. Okay. It’s 8:09 p.m.

A Ckay.

Q.  AndIwill tum off the tape. )
RM:WCl:pg
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Wiiness Statement
of Terry Benson

1. My name is Terry Benson and 1 am the owner of Arizona Elite Security. I have been working 2

shift. as a sécurity gard, at the Goldberg residence at 6483 E. El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley,
AZ 85253 for the past three weeks, enerally three days per week 3:00p.m. to 11:00p.m.

W

Every time | have ever walked into the front door of the Goldberg residence, I noticed an odor that
1 can best describe as acidic. Oncel was inside the house, my eyes and nose would burn. This
burning continiied until T went cutside and was able to get some fresh air. There are days that the
odor is worse than others. It seems like it is worse on the days that there are clouds moving in. |

- also noticed that the odor gets worse as I walk down through the tunnef and into the south end of
the house. 1 have also been in the guest suite one time, and the odor was about the same Ievel in
sirength as the tunne! and the south end of the house. S

3. T could not live in this house unless the smell was gone.

m %%—j@"&

Terry Benson Date
Home Address: 15428 N. Central Ave,
Phoenix, AZ 85022
Home Phone: 602-942-1429
Work Phone: 602-912-0722

Goldberg 4924
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Witness Statemaent
of Terry Benson

. My neme is Terry Benson snd [ am the owner of Arizons Elite Security. I bave been woiking s 8
back up security guard at;tholdbezgresideneeat&SB E. El Maro Circle, Paredise Valley, AZ
85253 for a little over a year.

While 1 was working on Friday, Septeziber 16, 2005, the Goldbergs came to their Fl Maro bouse

at approximately 9:45a.m.. Iwalkedﬂ:mughtheﬁontdoorwﬂhmaoldqugs,andhnmﬁately
smelled the odor of urine. As I walked through the house, I continued to smell the odor of urine,

andmynosestm‘tedtobum,andlcouldalsofeelabumingfeelinginmy!upgs., Tt was as if there

wassometbingscidic.inth‘eair\, and it was irritating my nose and hngs.

. 'ﬁ‘héﬁrinthehonsehasalwayshaﬂmacidicquaﬁtywit,,bmthisl)aniculafday,iwxldsmeuﬁe
va:ystronganddisﬁnaodomﬁuineﬂ:mghﬂutmshouse. T am confidént that the odor I smelled
was urine. . )

@;’ — ) : ‘ﬂmheé{

Tesky Benson Dae -
Home Address: 15428 N. Cenval Ave,
Phoeaix, AZ §5022
H@m Phome: 602-942-1429
Woik Phone: &02-912-0722

GOLDBERG 7285
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Witness Statement
of Donald R. Bratcher

I am the President and one of the owners of VAC Environmental Services, Inc. On or
about November 5 or 6, 2003. I was working at the Goldbergs’ El Maro home at 6483 E.
El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley, AZ as part of our company’s work there in connection
with remediation of the urine deposits and odor in the home. I was in the guest suite
when David Rueckert conducted a black light inspection of approximately seventeen two
by six vertical wood studs that made up the wall separating the guest suite kitchen from
the garage. I observed that the wood studs just described did not prowde any areas that
glowed under black light to indicate the possibility or probability of urine or other liquid
stains on thesé pieces of wood. All of thése studs were Eater removed as part of our third
scope of remedlatlon in the guest suite area.

The foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

) zﬁwz/ YIS 5/12/0¢

Donald R. Bratcher ' Date

Home Address: . 4420 W. El Caminito Dr.
Glendale, AZ 85302

Work Phone: 602-265-0321
Home Phone: 623-939-2800
Cell Phone: 602-820-5703

Goldberg 4459
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Witness Si:”é"t”em;em_
of Donald R. Bratcher

1. 1am the President and one of the owners of VAC Environmental Services, Inc. In the course of my .
work at the Goldbergs’ residence at 6483 E. El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley, AZ. 85253, in the pericd of
October and November 2003, T was personally involved in the investigation of the underground air
returns in the Goldberg residence at the above address in an effort to determine whether or not these
underground air returns contained any odor.

2 There are seven air handlers with underground air returns in the main residence building. Four of
those air handlers had been removed during the time of my participation in the investigation. I personally
crawled into those four underground returns and observed that there was no odor in any of them. Several
of my company employees likewise told me that they did not smell any odor at the entrance to these
systems. Likewise, a man named Chris (a subcontractor for ARCS) who was working in the underground
returns in conjunction with efforts to clean and/or seal them also reported to me that there was no odor in -
any of these four underground return systems for these four air handlers that had been removed. While
Chris was working in three of the underground retum systems, our company had a negative air machine
hooked up to the system that he was working in. I and several of our company employees frequently
smelled the air that was being pulled out of each of these underground retum systems and observed no
odor. 1have reviewed the video recordings taken October 23, 2003 of the four underground return .
systems associated with the four air handlers that had been removed. My review of these recordings does
not reveal any water in these systems, except for the system that serves the exercise room and terminates
at Mark’s office. That system was fully cleaned and sealed by ARCS in November 2003, so that it should
no longer permit any water to enter that underground retum system. .

3. With respect to the other three underground retum systems for the other three air handlers, T removed
the air filters from those units and personally put my head as far down into the underground retumm system
as 1 could physically manage and once again observed no odor in any of those three systems.

4. 1 have previously in May, 2004, while at the Goldberg residence, reported the general nature of these
findings verbally to & group that included Don Woods and Ginger English, one of the attorneys for Pacific .
Indemnity Company, the homeowners insurance carrier for the Goldbergs.

5. Based on all of the investigation conducted regarding the underground return systems at the
Goldbergs’ residence, I have no reason to believe or suspect that there is any condition present in any of
these underground return systems that is contributing to any odor issues in the Goldberg residence.

The foregoing statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

ﬂaQ»..w/ 4 WJ& ¢/23/04

Donald R. Bratcher _ Date
Home Address: 4420 W. El Caminito Dr.
Glendale, AZ 85302
Work Phone: 602-265-0321
Home Phone: 623-939-2800
Cell Phone: 602-820-5703 30
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-Daar Mark and Sherry Goldberg, ' 629104

£ dour request these readings were taken at your house at
6483 E. El Maro Circle, Tuesday momming June 29th, 2004.

The weather was clear and there was no indication of recent moisture on surfaces.

- The device used to test the tile and concrete surfaces was a Delmhorst Accuscan
" In-conjunction with a BD-2100 penetrating meter.

_ The readings on the wood scale 6-40%, concrete 0-100 ref. scale for non-wood materials.
A copy of the Accuscan rmanual pages 1-12 and BD 2100's manual pages 1-15 is enclosed.

The reading was conducted in accordance with the instruction manual.

) Concrete (C) or Tie (T)
The following were used as baselines for tile and concretie. Surface Penetrating Surface (%) Penefrating (%)
House next door east side enterance to home concrete floor. 25C
Sidewalk across the street 30C
Logo's/VAC's warehouse concrete floor at 2027 E. Glendale Ave. 25C 68C
go'sNAC's tile floor at 2027 E. Glendale Ave. 30T
Driveway 6483 E. Fl Maro Cir. (tested 3 places) 25C
Sidewalk in front of Goldberg house 25C
Family Room Wood Floor 9 5.9
KGtchen Wood Floor (o) 5.8
Ytchen Cabinets 8 5.8
ol Room Center of Wood Floor 10 5.8

Hallway between Family Room and Poo! Room Wood Floor 9 5.9
Laundry Room Tile Floor_ 40T .

- [Guest Suite Concrete Floar 30C 78C g 5.8
Living Room Cut Out Center of Floor/ Concrete ACC 84C
Living Room Wood Floor ' 9 5.8
Haliway in Front of Living Room and Main Entrance Wood Floor Q 50 .
Garage Terrazzo Floor 35
Exercise Room Wood Floof ' , 9 6.1
Dining Room Dark Woaod ) B 5.9
Master Bathroom Tile Floor 28T
Art Room Wood Floor : 9 6
Hallway by Art Room Wood Floor 9 5.9
Elizabeth Taylor Bathroom Tile Floor 25T .
Elizabeth Taylor Bedroom Wood Floor : 9 5.9
Patio Behind Kitchen Terrazzo Floor 30 _
Master Bedroom Wocd Floor 9 5.8
His Bathroom Tile Floor 35T .
His Closet Wood Floor 8 5.8
Office Wood Floor 10 5.8
Bus Bam Tile Floor 21T
Wine Room ' 9 5.8
Ubrary : g. 5.9

.'Donald ratcher Date
At St Lprefey

Goldberg 4446
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Wituess Statement
of Donald R. Bratcher

1. 1 am the President and ooe of the owners of VAC Bovironmental Services, lae, [ have been
-personally involved in the various investigations and remediation efforts at the Goldberg residence at
6483 E. El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley, AZ. 85253 over the approximately last 10 months or so.

2. In sbout October 2003, while four of the air handlers had been removed, I removed the sir filters from
theoﬂxerﬁireeairhandlemﬂmthaveundagmundretmnairsystemsanﬂhad,‘inad&ﬁonmmysdf,oneof
myemgloyeesﬁ-omomoompanypmmheadas&rintothemdamoumdwhmairmtanasmmd‘
physiwﬂybeﬁwmgedhord&tosmeﬂtheairhewhofthaeﬂmesystm. My employee reported to
me that, likamyselﬂhcobsuvdmodorinmyofm@eﬂmsym

3. On approximately October 1, 2003, I was present along with Deanna Corbett when the lower kitchen
cabinets were removed from the guest suite kitchen. Opeswﬁwofmmembin%whmhwasrexnﬁvei
i'eekedofuﬁneandhadevidenceofurhestainhgonﬁnebackofthe cabinet. When the first rush of urine
odor reached Deanna, she exclaimed: “Whow!” and she quickly backed up to get away from the strong |
odor of urine. 1 conld clearly emell the urine odor miyself as well. After physically backing up from the
odor, Deanna stated that it smelled like urine. . }

4. Sometime after the removal of the kitchen cabinets, on sanother occasion when X was at the Goldberg
'r&cidencawiﬂlDeannaCorl?eﬂ,Dmnmmadethefoﬁoﬁngmtemmttome,whidiimdescﬁbea;s 4
being as close to a quote of what ahe paid as memory will perwit: “Y wish to God 1 had never smefled
woine here.” . :

! 5, During the period in late April and early May 2004, when Hayden Baldwin was conducting his Tuned
Light itispestion of the Goldberg residence, either I or my employes, Jusn Galvez, were up in the attic of
:1 the house with Mr, Baldwin and Don Woods and Deanns Corbett and at various times Mona Maogold -
de@ﬁmO’Rﬁeﬂy,,mglmﬁmdmepmofﬂ!@dﬁmd@mmfm%mﬁﬁiﬁgefm )
an attornay for Chubb. Either ¥ or Juan mansged to stay with Mr. Baldwin aud the other members of the

. group that were in the area where Mr. Baldwin was worldng st sll tishes during his inspection. At no time
did ¥ or Juan, based on what Juan has reported to e, ever w‘i‘tﬁmn{woﬁ’ﬁww&ﬁsm representatives of
Chubb attempttomellmyofﬂxeareasﬁwtwemmﬂcedtobetestédfonn"ineintheatticorinﬂ\ehouse;

6. During the course of the various investigative and remediation eﬂjortsatthe Goldberg borme, L have .
hadmanyopporﬁmiﬁatodiawssthesimaﬁonwithDonWoods. He has said to me that he cannot
_guammethﬁfﬁtereismmineinthewallsoftheGoldberghome. .

7. During the very early period of time that Mr. Baldwin was at the Goldbetg residencs, there was a
meeting that T participated in, in the garage of the house. T had picked up an opened plastic bag that
contzined some stained papers that were being retained as evidence df possible urine stains from the.
remediation efforts. J wasn’t sure whether the inside of the bag had a urine odor or not, and wanted Don
Woods, one of Chubb’s experts to smell it As 1 vres attempting to hiand the bag to Don Woods to smell,
Ginger English, Chubb’s attomey, made the following statement, which I can describe as being as close to
a quote of what she said s memory will permit; “We're not here to smell things. We’re here to fluoresce
the spots. That's what we’re hete for. And that's what we’re going'to do.” Having heard that statement,
Don Woods did not proceed to smell the bag and its contents, and I proceeded to put the bag back on the
floor. .
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8. mlmeﬂ,m,lwmtwﬂmmwbagmmmwdmwﬁmyempbmfusnGalvez, Joan
Galvez removed the sir filter from each and every oue of the seven air handlers that has an underground
return air system. Juan and 1 used a flashlight to illuminate the underpround retum sir duct beneath the air
handlm‘_mmwheﬂuerthmwasmyvim'b!evminwofmmsym There was no visible water in
any of them. Then I had Fuan put bis nosa as far into the duct a9 possible in order to smell the dir in the ’
underground retum air system, Juan reported to me that there was no odor in any of the seven
unrderground return air systems,
Thefo%oingsﬁtemmﬁmmemda@mwﬁ@bwofwﬁmwledg&,

Donald R. Bratcher , . Date ‘
Bome Address: 4420 W. Bl Caminito Dr. '
Glendale, AZ 85302
Work Phone: 602-265-032} -
Home Phone: 623-939-2800
" Celi Phone: 602-820-5703
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Witness Statement
of Donald R. Bratcher

I am the President and one of the owners of VAC Environmental Services, Inc. I have been
personally involved in the various investigations and remediation efforts at the Goldberg residence at
6483 E. El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley, AZ. 85253 over the approximately last 10 months or so.

On July 14, 2004, in the mid-moming and again at about 4:30p.m. I was at the Goldberg residence at
6483 E. El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley, AZ 85253. Although I am only abie to smell strong odors,
during both visits I did perceive a strong and offensive urine odor in the entry foyer to the home, in
the dining room, in the billiard room, in the hallway from the dining room to the billiard room, in the
entry area coming in from the garage to the hallway, and in the guest suite. This was the first day that
I personally was able to smell a strong urine odor in various parts of the home all in one day,
although 1 had previously smelled urine odor in a few specific locations. When I first entered the
Goldberg residence in the morning and was literally hit with a powerful urine smell when I first
entered the foyer inside the front door of the home, I actually said, “Whoa”, because it was sucha
shock when I encountered this obnoxious urine odor. I am 100% sure that the strong odor I smelled
at the Goldberg residence on July 14, 2004 was urine. '

Earlier in the afternoon of July 14, 2004, between approximately 1:00p.m. and 3:00p.m., I sent one of
my employees, Juan Galvez, to the Goldbergs’ El Maro residence with instructions to remove the air
filters in all seven air handlers that have underground return air ducts and inspect the bottom of the
return air ducts, as far as he could see, to determine if there was any sign of water there. Juan
reported to me that there was no visible water in any of the retumn air ducts of the seven systems. Juan
was also asked to smell the air in those ducts to see whether there was any odor. He reported to me
that he found no odor in any of the seven systems. :

Since I personally found the level of urine odor to be so strong and offensive, I placed a telephone
call to Don Woods, the Industrial Hygienist for Chubb, the Goldbergs’ homeowners insurance
carrier,-and informed Don Woods of my observations and aiso of the fact that the security guard on
duty in the morning and early afternoon on July 14, 2004 reported to me that he has been smelling the
odor of urine on a regular basis at the Goldberg residence in recent weeks.

At about 4:30p.m. on July 14, 2004, Deanna Corbeit, an Industrial Hygienist who works with Don
‘Woods, also on behalf of Chubb, met me and Juan Galvez at the Goldbergs’ El Maro home. Deanna
was accompanied by Don Woods’ daughter. While standing in the guest suite living room, Deanna
commented that the odor in the guest suite smelled “like garbage” to her. Deanna said that it smelled
different there than by the entry area inside the front door of the home. While Juan, Deanna, and I
were in the guest suite, Juan sliced open the plastic containment separating the guest suite bathroom
from the rest of the guest suite. We all smelled the air by putting our heads through the opening in
the plastic. Deanna said that it smelled like sewer gas to her. I explained to Deanna that for a few
months our company employees had been running water down all the drains in the house, including
the ones in that bathroom, so that sewer gas could not come up through any of the drains. I also
explained to Deanna that the room has been sealed up for about 9 months and that it naturally smells
stale and musty and that any other odor in the bathroom may be a little urine odor mixed in with the
musty stale odor. I told Deanna that the bathroom definitely did not smell like sewer gas. The three
of us then went out to smell the sewer trap outside that part of the house. It had very little odor to
Juan and me when we smelled it and reported our findings to Deanna. Deanna smelled the sewer trap

herself and said that it had a little smell. A4
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6. 1 was at the Goldberg residence again on Friday and Saturday, July 15 and 16, 2004, with Juan
Galvez, Mona Mangold, a Chubb claims representative, and Deanna Corbett. I could still smell 2
slight odor of urine in various parts of the house on those two days, but the level of the urine smefl
was nothing close to the strong urine smell that was present in the house on Wednesday, July 14,
2004. On Friday, while walking around in the guest suite living room, Deanna said that it smelled
like garbage and excrement. On the same day, we cut open the plastic containment separating the
guest suite bathroom from the rest of the guest suite. We all went into the bathroom. 1 smelled the air
from the guest suite bathroom and made the same general comments to Mona and Deanna about what
I smelled that I had previously made to Deanna on Wednesday July 14, 2004. However, Deanna
also smelled the air in the bathroom and said that it smelled fike sewer gas to her. Neither Juan
Galvez nor I agreed with her opinion, and we told her so. On the same day while Deanna Corbett
smelled the inside of the master bedroom wetbar cabinet, Deanna said that she still smelled a slight
urine odor in that cabinet. Also on that Friday or Saturday, we were out in the garage and we smelied
the underground return air duct beneath the air handler that, at that time, Deanna Corbett believed
serviced the guest suite. However, on Sunday, July 18, 2004, T went to the Goldberg home and
determined that the air handler whose underground return air duct we were smelling a day or two
before, that Deanna Corbett believed serviced the guest suite, actually services the dining room and
billiard room. On Monday, July 19, 2004, Juan and I reviewed the blueprints for the Goldberg
residence and confirmed on those blueprints that the air handler that Deanna Corbett believed
serviced the guest suite, actually services the billiard room and dining room of the home.

7. On Thursday, July 14, 2004 around mid-day, Deanna Corbett stopped by our company’s office and
. ran into me. During our conversation she said to me that she never smeiled urine in the guest suite of
the Goldberg residence. I reminded her that I and my employee, Gerardo Diaz, were standing right
- éxt to her when we examined the kitchen cabinets that we had detached from the guest suite kitchen
3 and when she dramatically responded to the strong odor of urine while examining that section of
: cabinets. I also reminded Deanna about how clear she was at that moment when she told us that she
definitely smelled urine from those cabinets. My recollection of Deanna’s reaction to the usine odor
from those cabinets on about October 1, 2003 and her exclamation that she definitely smelled urine
odor is extremely clear and strong in my mind, because we were ofl so excited about this discovery
and because it was such a dramatic rea ion on her part when she smelled that section of the kitchen
cabinets. Deanna said to me that her recollection of the incident was different from mine.

/QM%/M /300y

Donald R. Bratcher Date’
Home Address: 4420 W. El Caminito Dr.
Glendale, AZ 85302
Work Phone: 602-265-0321
Home Phone: 623-939-2800
Cell Phone: 602-820-5703 )
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Witness Statement
of Donald R. Braicher

. 1 am the President and one of the owners of VAC Environmental Services, Inc. Ihave been

personally involved in the various investigations and remediation efforts at the Goldberg residence at
6483 E. El Maro Circle, Paradise Valley, AZ. 85253 over approximately the last two years.

. On September 16, 2005, at approximately 11:30a.m., I was at the Goldbérg residence at 6483 E. El

Maro Circle, Paradise Valley, AZ 85253. I walked through the front door and then through the whole
house. When I walked through the front door, I was hit in the face with the very strong odor of urine.
As 1 walked through the master bedroom area and the hallways leading to it, I continued to smell the
strong odor of urine. I then walked toward the opposite end of the house, and the odor remained
pretty strong as I walked past the kitchen, the dining room and into the guest suite, all the way down
the tunnel up to the garage. The guest suite itself still had an unpleasant odor, bt it wasn’t exactly
the same odor. It wasn’t quite as strong as the rest of the house. However, the bathrocom in the guest
suite-was very pungent. It was a very strong urine type of smell. As I walked through the south end
of the house, past the garage door, I still picked up the same unpleasant urine odor, but it was not as
strong as the rest of the house. i

. OnJ uly 14, 2004, T was able to smell the very strong odor of urine in various parts of the house.

When I visited the Goldberg residence on September 16, 2005, the odor of urine was just as strong,
and seemed to be in even more areas of the home than my visit on July 14, 2004. Iam 100% sure
that what I was smelling was the odor of urine.

KQ»A’@Q %M%M\ v / g™ 2005

Donald R. Bratcher Dat
Home Address: 4420 W. El Caminito Dr.
Glendale, AZ 85302
Work Phone: 602-265-0321
Home Phone: 623-939-2800

Cell Phone: 602-820-5703
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